Form 10-300
(July 1969)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY — NOMINATION FORM

(Type all entries — complete applicable sections)

STATE:

Rhode Island

COUNTY:
Providence

FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

DATE

TSR )

v C OMMON:
WiASer= Stwan-Whitman Farm

INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

AND/OR HISTORIC:

STREET AND NUMBER - e
16 Eaton Street i ~J

CITY OR TOWN: :L\’/ \‘,7
Providence N A Y

STATE CoDE |COUNTY: AL = CODE
Rhode Island, 02918 nn Providence 007 |

CATEGORY ’ . SIBLE
S
(Check One) OWNERSHIP STATU TO THE PUBLIC
(] District (X Building g [J Public Public Acquisition: A Occupied Yes:
] Site [ Structure X Private (] 'n Process [J Unoccupied Ol R”"'C.”d
[J Object ] Both [] Being Considered [] Preservation work O Unrestricted
in progress & No

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

(] Agricultural [C] Government (J Park

(O Commercial (] Industrial EI Private Residence
(] Educational [ Military [] Religious

[0 Entertainment ] Museum ] Scientific

(O] Transportation

(] Comments

[C] Other (specify)

e ——————
OWNER'S NAME:

Prescott Whitman

STREET AND NUMBER:

1116 Eaton Street

CITY OR TOWN:
Providence

STATE:

Rhode Island, 02918

CODE

t31vls

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Providence City Hall

STREET AND NUMBER:
Dorrance Street at Washington Street

CITY OR TOWN:
Providence

STATE

Rhode Island, 02903

CODE

CALNNOD

TITLE OF SURVEY:

Not so represented

DATE OF SURVEY: (] Federal

[ State

(] County

(O Loecal

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

1

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN:

STATE:

CODE

HIEGWNN ANLN3

ATINO 3SN SdN 304

Jdlvaga




(Check One)
CONDITION X Excellent [J Good [] Fair (] Deteriorated [J Ruins (0 Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
[ Altered Unaltered ] Moved. m Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Whitman Farm nroperty, once thre centre of extensive agricul-
tural lands, tut now reduced to the site of the homestead and some small
outhuildings, is in a north-western vart of the city of Providence,
where it is now surrounded hy closely-spaced dwelllings erected after
World Wars I and II and near the camous of Providence College (whose
acreare was once also neightouring farmland). The fenced, well cared-
for and small site facing on busy Eaton Street includes the farmhouse,
a wagon-shed, a one-room schoolhouse, a corncrib-cum-hennery structure,
a workshop-shed and a small, ornamentally-covered well-head; the cattle
and horse barn once across Eaton Street disappeared long ago. While
the little early XIX-Century schoolhouse is of much interest, the home-
stead itself is of course the most important survivor in this contained

complex.

The house dates from about 1750 or slightly earlier (at least its
site was recorded as teing owned by Olney Winsor in 1753, who probably
was already living on the promerty) in its central core, tut an impor-
tant addition was made across the north end--now forming the entrance
front of the house--c. 1800-1810, and an ell was extended from the south
apparently at the same time or shortly thereafter. So, the whole is
made up of three distinctly separate hut conjoined parts, best noticed
as one views the structure from the south-east. The earliest part (now
the middle portion) is one storey and a half in height, timber-framed
above a stone cellar, gable-roofed with ridge running north-south, and
claphoarded. 1In plan it has four rooms (one now divided in two) around
a central chimney which serves an angled or corner fireplace in each
room. One cannot to-day determine the original uses of these four
rooms ... for example, which was the kitchen; but presumahly there were
a kitchen, a parlour or keeping-room and two bedchambers. These are
now used as a sitting-room, a dining-room and three hedchambers. A
hathroom has been inserted in a corner of one of them and clothes-cup-
boards built out into anothrer, concealing within these conveniences
two of the original nine-over-nine-sashed windows that now face ~upon
a wall or a wpassage of the later front and rear additions. 1In the deep
cellar below this o0ld core of the house is the extremely massive
boulder-and-mortar hase of the centre chimney; atove, and under its
garle roof, which is plastered internally and has a western dormer, is

additional sleeping-space.

In the early 1800's a two-and-one-half-storey, three-bay-wide,
one-room-deep addition with one end chimney was built across the north
end of the XVIII-Century house, providing it with a new (north) main
entrance, hallways opening to two rooms on the first floor and three on
the second, and a garret. This higher addition is also gatrle-roofed,
though its ridge runs east-west while that in the older part of the
house runs, as mentioned, north-south. At the same time, or nearly the
same time, a one-storey gabled ell, to contain a new kitchen, was
stretched out from the rear (south) of the old dwelling. This has not

(See Continuation Sheet 1.)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The small, compact and picturesque group of dwelling, well-head,
wagon-shed, corncrit, schoolhouse and workshop on the Writman Farm land
to-day constitutes one of the last vestiges of a farm property in the
city of Providence, whose central area was once ringed ry sizeable
agricultural lands, all of which are now covered by dense residential
and comrercial develovment--usually without a trace of the original
homesteads or dependencies.

The Whitman Farm has been traced back more than two hundred
years to ownership by Olney Winsor in 1753, and the central part of
the house would appear to re of about that date. Its considerable
acreage at that time had as its southern boundary the Powdermill Turn-
pike (now Smith Street) and extended as far north as Adriral Street.
Its western toundary was the present Sharon Street (once called Swan
Avenue after later owners of the land), and on the east it ran to the J
present River Avenue. Eaton Street is one of the thoroughfares which
now run (east to west) through this property, and the surviving farm-
house fronts directly on the sidewalk of this street, across which

there remained into this century the old barn for horses and other live-
stocK.

Later in the XVIII Century the property in its entirety passed
into ownership of the Swan family, and in subsequent years and through
several generations the large acreage hrecame divided and shared by
Swan offspring and heirs and those whom they married (including one
Amasa W. Angell, who estarlished a forge and wheelwright operation
near the harn), though the homestead site with its close-by ancillary
structures remained intact. From 1801 to 1839, two Misses Winsor of
the former owning family ran tebind therr 0l1d rome a "dame school"

for e¢irl students, of whom some were presumably toarders in the house.
It is within this period--and probatly c. 1810--that the house was en-
larged at front and rear and that the schoolhouse to the south was
erected. It is of interest to compare the modest Federal-style ele-
gancies of the dwelling's additions to the strong trim mouldings and
told panels seen in its centre portion.” In 1839 a large southern part
of the property went to C. E. Swan, great-grandfather of the present
owner, by whose will it was divided among his five children, a daughter
receiving the homestead. From her (who married a Whitman) it has de-

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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7. Description,
as high a roof-ridge as the original structure, nor is it as wide; it has
an inside end chimney which served the cooking-hearth and, later, stoves.
At some time this ell was widened on its east side by about two feet,
given a small pent frowm the roof over this two-foot stretch and also
given a plain, shallow, shed-roofed porch along that side. None of these
progressions in the house's size and shave is to te seen from Eaton
Street, where it presents a symmetrical, two-storey, three-ray entrance
elevation.

On its exterior the Whitman house shows the plainest of white-clap-
boarded walls, the only trim being minimal eaves- and gable-cornices,
the capping-cornices on the plain protruded window enframements, the
architrave-and-cornice surround of the six-panelled front door and its
five-pane transom. Windows are generally of six-over-six sash, though
some sash surviving in windows (*locked-up in cuptoards) of the XVIII-
Century dwelling core hawve more and smaller panes, and window sash (pos-
sibtly re-used or brought from elsewhere) in the kitchen ell are varied,
including one opening with a twelve-over-eight arrangement of panes.

Interior trim is in general simple and econémically used, too. 1In
the old centre vortion of the house the four corner fireplaces are nearly
the only adornments of its four rooms: two of these have bolection mould-
ings surrounding the hearth openings with vanels and shallow cuproard
ooenings atrove; the other two have simple mantels surmounted hy shallow
shelves. In this vart of the house there is wainscoting of wide, hori-
zontal boardine topned by a moulded rail. (One room, a present sitting-
room, in this old portion was siven "up-to-date" décor in the form of
Greek Revival trim in its simplest, carpenter-executed style for its
two windows, probatly in the 18l'0's.) 01d wide-board flooring is still
in several of the rooms of both the earlier and later parts of the house.
Staircases are--both fore and aft--enclosed and rather cramped. The
frontal, 1800's section has two fine Federal mantels in the west rooms
of the first and second floors, that on the first floor featuring fluted
half-columns and both having crisp, angular mouldings along their mantel-
shelves.

The house is in an intact, well-maintained condition and shows its
history. The only changes made over a long period are minor: the upper
part of the centre chimney had to te retruilt in recent decades; fireplace
ovenipgs in the centre and rear »arts have teen closed; a bathroom has

been inconsoicuonsly inserted; electricity was not installed until 1922;
and "new" flooringkas laid in the sitting-room, dining-room and two ted-
rooms in 1932.

Besides the homestead itself, trere still exist on this fragment of
the farmland some subsidiary structures, although the original large harn

(See Continuation Sheet 2.)
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7. Description.

across katon Street, as said, is eone. Close to the rear of the house is
a well-head canopied hy a somewhat "Gothick" wooden tonnet on four slim
viers. There is a wide, gahle-rocofed wagon- and wood-shed near this, a
corncrib to which a hennery has heen attached, a one-room schoolhouse, a
small workshop shed. Of these, the schoolhouse, datine from c. 1810, is
the most interesting: its function was to house the private education of
a small eroup of girls. It lies just rack of the wagon- and -vood-house,
is of one storey and has a (east-west) parle roof, a plain doorway with
transom lights, several windows (again, many-paned and perhaps re-used).
It is rough-plastered inside from floor to ceiling and was heated vy a
primitive central iron stove which is still there, as are one or more of
the o0ld school henches. The present owner of the Whitman Farm has re-
jected offers to sell the schoolhouse to be re-erected and displayed else-
where; so it remains, still to-day, a part of the small homestead property.

8. Significance.

scended to the present occupants, and thus bas long teen called the
"Whitman Farm," even though land was eventually sold off for ™ingalows
and small houses, and the tarn disappeared, and farming operations con-
sisted only in the oneration of a hennery.

Except for the closing of some hearths and the replacement of the
upper portion of the centre chimney, the dwelling has suffered little
alteration. The outbuildings immediately adjacent, including the quaint
schoolhouse, have teen retained and maintained as well as the house it-
selﬁhas been. Thus, in the midst of closely-packed small homes of the
1920's-1930's and ranch-houses of later date, there still remains the
architecurally interesting old Winsor-Swvan-Whitman dwellingand its con-
tents, protected in fromt by a decorous picket fence and shraring its site
with the smaller outtuildings seen close to it as a grouping. Its like
is not to re found elsewhere within the city. It is Fras been given
thoughtful preservation, which should continue.
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